

State of South Dakota

SEVENTY-SECOND SESSION
LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY, 1997

400A0760

HOUSE BILL NO. 1267

Introduced by: Representative Van Gerpen and Senators Albers and Munson (David)

1 FOR AN ACT ENTITLED, An Act to require the convicted offenders pay restitution to victims.

2 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA:

3 Section 1. That § 23A-28-1 be amended to read as follows:

4 23A-28-1. It is the policy of this state that restitution ~~may~~ shall be made by each violator of
5 the criminal laws to the victims of ~~his~~ the violator's criminal activities to the extent that the
6 violator is reasonably able to do so. An order of restitution may be enforced by the state or a
7 victim named in the order to receive the restitution in the same manner as a judgment in a civil
8 action.

9 Section 2. That § 23A-28-3 be amended to read as follows:

10 23A-28-3. If the sentencing court orders the defendant to the county jail, suspended
11 imposition of sentence, suspended sentence, or probation, the court ~~may~~ shall require as a
12 condition that the defendant, in cooperation with the court services officer assigned to the
13 defendant, promptly prepare a plan of restitution, including the name and address of each victim,
14 a specific amount of restitution to each victim and a schedule of restitution payments. ~~If the~~
15 ~~defendant is presently unable to make any restitution but there is a reasonable possibility that the~~
16 ~~defendant may be able to do so at some time during his probation or parole period, the plan of~~

1 ~~restitution shall also state the conditions under which or the event after which the defendant will~~
2 ~~make restitution.~~ If the defendant believes that no person suffered pecuniary damages as a result
3 of the defendant's criminal activities, ~~he~~ the defendant shall so state. If the defendant contests the
4 amount of restitution recommended by the court services officer, ~~he~~ the defendant is entitled to
5 a hearing at which the court shall determine the amount. If the sentencing court orders the
6 defendant to the state penitentiary and does not suspend the sentence, the Board of Pardons and
7 Paroles ~~may~~ shall require as a condition of parole that the defendant, in cooperation with the
8 executive director of the Board of Pardons and Paroles, prepare the plan of restitution as
9 described in this section.

10 Section 3. That § 23A-28-12 be amended to read as follows:

11 23A-28-12. Anyone convicted under § 26-10-1, 22-22-7, or 22-22-19.1, or subdivision
12 22-22-1(4) or (5), ~~may~~ shall be required as part of the sentence imposed by the court to pay all
13 or part of the cost of any necessary medical, psychological, or psychiatric treatment of the minor
14 resulting from the act or acts for which the defendant is convicted.

15 Section 4. That § 23A-28C-1 be amended to read as follows:

16 23A-28C-1. Consistent with § 23A-28C-4, victims of the crime, including victims of driving
17 under the influence vehicle accidents, have the following rights:

- 18 (1) Notification of scheduled bail hearings and release from custody, notification by the
19 prosecutor's office when the case is received and to whom the case is assigned, and
20 notification in advance of the date of preliminary hearing and trial;
- 21 (2) To be informed of what the charges mean and the elements necessary for conviction;
- 22 (3) To testify at scheduled bail or bond hearings regarding any evidence indicating
23 whether the offender represents a danger to the victim or the community if released;
- 24 (4) Protection from intimidation by the defendant, including enforcement of orders of
25 protection;

- 1 (5) To offer written input into whether plea bargaining or sentencing bargaining
2 agreements should be entered into;
- 3 (6) To be present during all scheduled phases of the trial or hearings, except where
4 otherwise ordered by the judge hearing the case or by contrary policy of the presiding
5 circuit judge;
- 6 (7) To be prepared as a witness, including information about basic rules of evidence,
7 cross-examination, objections, and hearsay;
- 8 (8) To provide to the court a written or oral victim impact statement prior to sentencing
9 regarding the financial and emotional impact of the crime on the victim and his family
10 as well as recommendations for restitution and sentencing and § 23A-28-8
11 notwithstanding, the right to appear at any hearing during which a change in the plan
12 of restitution is to be considered;
- 13 (9) Restitution, ~~if the victim requests it~~, whether the convicted criminal is probated or
14 incarcerated, ~~unless the court or parole board provides to the victim on the record~~
15 ~~specific reasons for choosing not to require it~~;
- 16 (10) To provide written input at parole hearings or with respect to commutations of
17 sentences by the Governor, should those options be considered;
- 18 (11) In a case in which the death penalty may be authorized, to provide to the court or to
19 the jury, as appropriate, testimony about the victim and the impact of the crime on the
20 victim's family; and
- 21 (12) Notification of the defendant's release from custody, which notice includes:
 - 22 (a) Notice of the defendant's escape from custody and return to custody following
23 escape;
 - 24 (b) Notice of any other release from custody, including placement in an intensive
25 supervision program or other alternative disposition, and any associated

1 conditions of release;

2 (c) Notice of parole; and

3 (d) Notice of pending release of an inmate due to expiration of sentence;

4 (13) Notification of the victim's right to request testing for infection by blood-borne
5 pathogens pursuant to § 23A-35B-2.

6 Section 5. That § 22-6-1 be amended to read as follows:

7 22-6-1. Except as otherwise provided by law, felonies are divided into the following eight
8 classes which are distinguished from each other by the ~~respective~~ following maximum penalties
9 ~~hereinafter set forth~~ which are authorized upon conviction:

10 (1) Class A felony: death or life imprisonment in the state penitentiary. A lesser sentence
11 than death or life imprisonment may not be given for a Class A felony;

12 (2) Class B felony: life imprisonment in the state penitentiary. A lesser sentence may not
13 be given for a Class B felony;

14 (3) Class 1 felony: life imprisonment in the state penitentiary. In addition, a fine of
15 twenty-five thousand dollars may be imposed;

16 (4) Class 2 felony: twenty-five years imprisonment in the state penitentiary. In addition,
17 a fine of twenty-five thousand dollars may be imposed;

18 (5) Class 3 felony: fifteen years imprisonment in the state penitentiary. In addition, a fine
19 of fifteen thousand dollars may be imposed;

20 (6) Class 4 felony: ten years imprisonment in the state penitentiary. In addition, a fine of
21 ten thousand dollars may be imposed;

22 (7) Class 5 felony: five years imprisonment in the state penitentiary. In addition, a fine of
23 five thousand dollars may be imposed; and

24 (8) Class 6 felony: two years imprisonment in the state penitentiary or a fine of two
25 thousand dollars, or both.

1 The court, in imposing sentence on a defendant who has been found guilty of a felony, ~~may~~
2 shall order in addition to the sentence that is imposed pursuant to the provisions of this section,
3 that the defendant make restitution to any victim in accordance with the provisions of chapter
4 23A-28.

5 Nothing in this section shall limit increased sentences for habitual criminals under §§ 22-7-7
6 and 22-7-8.

7 Except in cases where punishment is prescribed by law, every offense declared to be a felony
8 and not otherwise classified is a Class 6 felony.

9 Section 6. That § 22-6-2 be amended to read as follows:

10 22-6-2. Except as otherwise provided by law, misdemeanors are divided into two classes
11 which are distinguished from each other by the following maximum penalties which are
12 authorized upon conviction:

13 (1) Class 1 misdemeanor: one year imprisonment in a county jail or one thousand dollars
14 fine, or both;

15 (2) Class 2 misdemeanor: thirty days imprisonment in a county jail or two hundred dollars
16 fine, or both.

17 The court in imposing sentence on a defendant who has been found guilty of a misdemeanor
18 ~~may~~ shall order, in addition to the sentence that is imposed pursuant to the provisions of this
19 section, that the defendant make restitution to any victim in accordance with the provisions of
20 chapter 23A-28.

21 Except in cases where punishment is prescribed by law, every offense declared to be a
22 misdemeanor and not otherwise classified, is a Class 2 misdemeanor.

23 Except in Titles 1 to 14, inclusive, 16 to 20, inclusive, 22, 25 to 28, inclusive, 32 to 36,
24 inclusive, 40 to 42, inclusive, 47 to 54, inclusive, and 58 to 62, inclusive, if the performance of
25 an act is prohibited by a statute, and no penalty for the violation of such statute is imposed by

1 a statute, the doing of such act is a Class 2 misdemeanor.